
 

Page 1 

Water Upgrades $ave — Announcements 
The Regional Climate Protection Authority (RCPA) provides this addendum for the Water Upgrades 
$ave Program Operator Request for Proposals.  

1. The RCPA is offering a second opportunity for proposers to submit questions related to the 
RFP. Proposers may submit questions to Chris Cone at chris.cone@rcpa.ca.gov from 
today until 5:00PM on June 15, 2020.  

2. The RCPA will host a work session on the Cost Exercise on June 15, 2020, from 9:30 to 
10:30AM. Please register using the information below to participate in the event. 

When: Jun 15, 2020 09:30 AM Pacific Time (US and Canada)  
Topic: Pre-Proposal Webinar — Water Upgrades $ave Cost Exercise Q&A  

Register in advance for this webinar: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_SWAu6uNpQJyQrrvvKv2lNA  

After registering, you will receive a confirmation email containing information about joining 
the webinar. 

3. The RCPA will post responses to questions received at the Cost Exercise work session and all 
questions received by 5:00PM on June 15, 2020, and not previously addressed by this 
Addendum #1 by 5:00PM on June 19, 2020.  

4. The RCPA offers the following updated RFP schedule based on these changes:  
 Release RFP: May 13, 2020  
 Pre-Proposal Meeting: May 21, 2020  
 Written Questions Due; Round 1: May 26, 2020  
 Addenda #1 with Round 1 Q&A: June 2, 2020 
 Cost Exercise Work Session: June 15, 2020 at 9:30AM PT 
 Written Questions Due; Round 2: June 15, 2020 at 5:00PM PT 
 Addenda #2 with Round 2 Q&A: June19, 2020 
 Proposals Due: June 30, 2020, by 5:00 p.m.  
 Interview Dates: July 10 and July 13, 2020  
 Notice of Intent to Award: July 14, 2020  
 Contract Approval: August 20, 2020  
 Kick-Off Meeting: tentatively week of August 18, 2020  
 Program Completion: no later than December 31, 2022  
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Water Upgrades $ave — Program Operator RFP — Addendum 1 
The following is offered by the RCPA team in response to questions submitted by the deadline for 
Round 1 of Written Questions. 
 

1. What is meant by purchasing account? 

A purchasing account would be established by the Operator with local distributors (examples: 
Home Depot, Lowes) that agree to make the Program-approved equipment available, ideally at 
a reduced price, billing the Operator directly for the materials so that DIY Multifamily customers 
can pick them up at no upfront cost. The Program is looking for a source of Program Materials 
that is easy for DIY Multifamily customers and their selected installer to use near the utility 
territory. 

2. We have a Customer Relationship Management (CRM) platform already, based on how we 
operate PAYS. Can we require its use to engage our services? Is that an acceptable option?  

A CRM is an essential part of how the Program remains efficient and provides the lowest cost 
services to its customers. The Program is one of six at the Bay Area Regional Energy Network 
(BayREN) and BayREN is interested in moving toward coordinating CRMs across BayREN’s 
programs. However, Water Upgrades $ave will consider working with a proposer who has an 
effective CRM in place. The Sonoma County Regional Climate Protection Authority (RCPA; 
Program Lead) would like to learn more about the features of the proposed CRM and will 
consider options and functionality of existing proposer systems. Please include this in a second 
version of your submitted cost exercise. 

The proposer should provide any estimate for potential customization or buildout of the 
platform to accommodate this Program’s reporting requirements. The Program will need 
guaranteed access to customer account data, contracts, files, and anything else the Program 
deems necessary to be posted in the CRM for the Program. This unlimited access includes use 
of the proposer’s CRM or assistance at no additional cost in transferring all Program data to a 
new CRM if there were ever a transition in Program operation.  

3. Do we need to stop the program when target numbers are achieved until funds are 
available again?  

Partner utilities must balance State of California conservation goals and their own revenue 
stream. The Program provides utilities the option to set an annual cap in projects. However, 
state targets continue to get more stringent and drought conditions are expected to put 
additional pressure on utilities to reduce consumption.  
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The Program has a strong a commitment of Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG) 
funding through the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (an ABAG partner agency). The 
Program is undergirded by California Senate Bill 564 — Water Bill Savings Act (2017), which 
allows a Joint Powers Authority like ABAG to set up a financing service and access bond 
funding as demand for the program grows. The Program also has an approved $1M seed fund 
and will be working to build out financing capacity as the Program launches.  

4. Where can we learn more about lessons learned from the first three pilots? 

The first utility pilot was established by the Town of Windsor in Sonoma County and launched 
in 2012. The next pilot was with the City of Hayward in 2014 and then East Bay Municipal Utility 
District in 2016. Information on the pilots can be found in the chart below.  

 

Lessons learned are available in an process evaluation report published in January 2019 at: 
http://calmac.org/publications/Water_Bill_Savings_Process_Evaluation021519-FINAL.pdf 

To develop the regional program design, the Program incorporated the feedback in the 
evaluation report as well as direct feedback from pilot partners.  

5. Who will be the first two utilities to participate in year 1 of the Water Upgrade Saves 
program? 

The City of Sebastopol is the first utility that has committed to joining the program. Its City 
Council authorized the City Manager to enter into a Master Agreement with the Program on 
May 5. The Program is currently a final legal review of the Master Agreement and intends to 
work with the City in the next month to execute the agreement. The Sonoma County RCPA and 
BayREN are in communication with at least three other utilities that are considering joining the 
program in 2020.  
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6. Are you targeting water partners with a minimum residential population size? With 
smaller agencies, meeting the program goals might be more difficult. 

What makes a utility a good candidate are its water rates and the single family and multifamily 
housing stock in its territory. The Program did a comprehensive analysis of Bay Area’s 99 water 
utilities and identified 35 utilities whose rate and housing characteristics indicate they would 
benefit from the Program. Excluding the three largest utilities, the remaining 32 utilities serve 
an average 26,000 residential units (single family and multifamily). In addition, as drought 
conditions continue, State targets increase, and water grid modernization and water supply 
costs go up, additional utilities may become good candidates. We believe this will provide a 
sufficient market to reach the Program’s goals.  

7. An annual cap of installs is a potential hurdle for a Program Operator to jump in that staff 
it hires to provide services are hard to find based on a pilot budget. Would a minimum 
commitment of x amount of funds (1 years’ salary for example) be well received?  

The Program would consider this. The Program recognizes that the startup period may present 
challenges but has the potential to create a very productive program. In recognizing the 
challenges of any program launch, the Program separated time and materials from the 
per-project work in the cost exercise. Proposer may include in a second cost exercise a 
potential baseline budget. The primary cost estimate though, should still present the 
proposer’s best thinking and estimate of per project cost.  

8. Will the contracting of the project and subsequent payments to Contractors be directly 
with BayREN or with the Operator? 

The Operator holds the contract with Program Contractors. The Program has provided the 
envisioned draft scope of work that aligns with the services Contractors have to deliver and 
some contract terms the Program requires to align with Program elements. Regarding 
payment, RCPA receives ABAG financing funds and pays them to the Operator for completed 
projects. The Operator will then pay Contractors for projects.  

9. Should we assume that prevailing wage rates will apply for the installation work in all 
cases? Or will this not be a factor since the customer will ultimately be the one paying for 
the work and not the municipal agency? 

The Program is actively seeking legal guidance on this issue. Existing decisions with the 
Department of Industrial Relations (DIR) indicate that prevailing wage will likely not apply to 
single family residential projects. However, there is less clarity about multifamily residential 
and commercial projects based on precedent. This is one of the reasons that the Program 
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offers the DIY model for multifamily residential customers so that they can still participate 
without using prevailing wage. Formal resolution on this topic is still pending.  

10. Why do you think single family and multifamily customers will say yes to program offers 
since most programs have challenges getting customers to accept offers? 

The Program is designed to make it as easy as possible for customers to participate. The Pay As 
You Save® (PAYS®) model that the Program is using puts the customer at the center of the 
program. They can have these Improvements installed and save immediately. This savings 
comes without an upfront cost, credit check run, etc., reducing barriers to the participant. The 
risk normally associated with installing these Improvements is absorbed by the Program. 
Participants immediately receive 20 percent of their savings while the remaining 80 percent is 
used to pay the cost of the Improvement over ten years. Afterward, they benefit from 100 
percent of their savings. The Program is designed to protect the participant if an Improvement 
fails. If this happens, the charge on the participant’s bill is suspended until the Improvement is 
repaired by a Program Contractor. Only then will the charge resume. In addition, the charge 
remains with the residence. If the original participant moves, they do not have the burden of 
paying off their remaining project costs, the Successor Customer to take utility service at the 
home will benefit from the savings and pay the on-bill charges.  

11. Regarding the cost exercise, if we have multiple staff members at different hourly rates 
assigned to a task, do you want the per unit cost to be a weighted average of their rates? 
Alternatively, do you want us to provide a further breakdown of their time and rates by 
task? 

For pricing, the Program anticipates that the proposer does their own task analysis to 
determine individual effort. However, the Program would like to only see the blended rate on 
the Cost Exercise.  

12. Are COVID-19 restrictions expected to impact the launch of the program? 

As with all activities in the State, COVID-19 may impact the launch of the Program based on 
mandated restrictions. However, the program does offer landscape measures that could be 
minimally impacted since the contractor would not be entering the residence itself.  

BayREN and the Program are developing safety protocols to integrate into Program 
operations, including contractor work. The Program is monitoring and looking for best 
practices that will offer safety and comfort to customers who want to participate. In addition, 
utility customers may be looking for ways to save on their utility bills in light of the economic 
downturn resulting from COVID-19.  
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13. Since Operators are going to be signing a Scope of Work for each project directly with the 
Participating Contractors and then paying them directly for the entirety of the work 
performed (much like a subcontractor), will you be requiring Operators to hold a General 
Contracting license (B-license) and be subcontracting the Participating Contractors 
performing the work?  

No. It is the expectation that the Program Contractor is an independent contractor. Program 
agreements expressly identify that Contractors are not employees or agents of Operator or 
Utility, and neither Operator nor Utility are guarantors of the work performed by Contractors or 
of the Improvements they install.  

14. Can the Program Operator ALSO do the actual installations? 

No. Please see response to Q.13 above.  

15. What is the useful life of each measure? 

Assumed measure life is as follows:  

 Toilets: 20-30 years 
 Showerheads: (with appropriate customer maintenance such as removing scaling): 

10-15 years 
 Aerators: 5 years 

Maximum payment term for the program is capped at 10 years.  

16. Are contractor scheduling services included in the CRM that is provided to the Program 
Operator or is this infrastructure that the Program Operator needs to secure and fund. 

The Operator will need to coordinate scheduling with contractors. If the Operator and the 
Program are able to find a scheduling tool that local contractors can easily use and integrate 
into their business model, the Program is open developing that scheduling functionality into 
the CRM.  

17. Complete, notarize, and file appropriate notices of on-bill charge at the county 
Recorder's office — What is the fee that the counties charge for this?  

Counties typically charge $15/page for recorded documents. This fee will be included as part of 
the project costs and paid for by Customers as part of their on-bill charge. The Operator does 
not need to budget for the filing fee; Operator should budget for labor related to completing, 
notarizing, and submitting the notice to the County Recorder for filing. 
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18. Will Sonoma County RCPA/BayREN provide the estimated budget for the Program 
Operator role? 

The estimated budget is not defined and will be driven by Program demand. Proposers should 
refer to the discussion in Section 1 (page 1), second paragraph for how the Operator budget 
may be developed based on the selected proposal. 

19. Will the Program Operator be required to pay prevailing wage and in what instances? 

The Operator will not have to pay prevailing wage to its own employees, nor will it be 
responsible for verifying that prevailing wages have been paid by Program Contractors. 
Operator will pay Contractor costs as approved for projects. See the response to Q.9 for 
information on the types of projects for which Contractors may be required to pay prevailing 
wage.  

20. Is the Program Operator responsible for generating the lead pipeline through Program 
Operator-led activities or converting leads provided by partner utilities into program 
participants? 

Please see discussion of Task B in the RFP: “BayREN and Partner Utility marketing and 
outreach activities are intended to drive customers to express interest as warm leads 
(“Customer Interest”) for Operator engagement. Operator is also allowed and encouraged to 
use RCPA-approved strategies to develop its own leads from Partner Utility provided Eligible 
Customer and High User lists. Operator staff will field all Customer Interest inquiries, 
responding within at least one business day; resolve issues in a timely and professional 
manner; and be available by phone and email.” 


